
 

 
AGENDA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
5000 CLARK AVENUE 

LAKEWOOD, CALIFORNIA 
 

July 28, 2015 
 
 
 
ADJOURNED MEETING:  Streetlight Upgrade Program Study Session 6:00 p.m. 
 EXECUTIVE BOARD ROOM 

CALL TO ORDER 7:30 p.m. 

 
INVOCATION:  Mr. David Montgomery, Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Boy Scout Troop 65 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor Jeff Wood 
 Vice Mayor Ron Piazza 
 Council Member Steve Croft 
 Council Member Diane DuBois 
 Council Member Todd Rogers 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS: 
All items listed within this section of the agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion without separate discussion.  Any Member of Council may request an item be removed for 
individual discussion or further explanation.  All items removed shall be considered immediately 
following action on the remaining items. 
 
RI-1 Approval of Minutes of the Meetings held June 23, 2015 
 
RI-2 Approval of Personnel Transactions 
 
RI-3 Approval of Registers of Demands 
 
RI-4 Approval of Designation of Voting Delegate for League Annual Conference 
 
RI-5 Approval of Report of Monthly Investment Transactions 
 
RI-6 Approval of Quarterly Schedule of Investments 
 
RI-7 Approval of Disabled Parking Space for 5646 Lakewood Boulevard, Resolution No. 2015-36, and 

4327 Hungerford Street, Resolution No. 2015-37 
 
RI-8 Approval of Agreement for Design Services at Intersection of Del Amo Boulevard and Lakewood 

Boulevard 
 



City Council Agenda 
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Any qualified individual with a disability that would exclude that individual from participating in or attending the above meeting should contact the City 
Clerk’s Office, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, CA, at 562/866-9771, ext. 2200; at least 48 hours prior to the above meeting to ensure that reasonable 

arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or other reasonable auxiliary aids or services may be provided. 
 

Copies of staff reports and other writings pertaining to this agenda are available for public review during regular business hours 
in the Office of the City Clerk, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, CA  90712 

ROUTINE ITEMS: - Continued 
RI-9 Approval of Lease Agreement with Marquette Bank for Purchase of Helicopter from City of 

El Monte, Resolution No. 2015-38 
 
RI-10 Approval of Project Management Authorization for Lakewood Water Capture and Infiltration 

Project 
 
RI-11 Approval of Citywide Landscape Master Plan and Standards for Arterials and Remnant Parcels 
 
RI-12 Approval of Resolution No. 2015-39; Urging the State of California to Provide New Sustainable 

Funding for State and Local Transportation Infrastructure 
 
RI-13 Approval of Resolution No. 2015-40; Supporting the Water Replenishment District of Southern 

California’s Groundwater Reliability Improvement Project 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
1.1 Consideration of Report of Delinquent Fees for Garbage, Waste and Refuse Collection and Disposal, 

Resolution No. 2015-41 
 
1.2 Award of Bid for Public Works Project No. 2015-3, Street Resurfacing in Del Amo Boulevard from 

Downey Avenue to Clark Avenue 
 
1.3 Introduction of Ordinance No. 2015-5; Amending the Lakewood Municipal Code Pertaining to Car 

Washes 
 
LEGISLATION: 
2.1 Resolution No. 2015-42; Appointment to the Community Safety Commission 
 
REPORTS: 
3.1 Streetlight Upgrade Project 
 
 

AGENDA 
LAKEWOOD SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

1.  Approval of Register of Demands 
 
 

AGENDA 
LAKEWOOD HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

1.  Approval of Register of Demands 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Minutes 
Lakewood City Council 

Adjourned Regular Meeting held 
June 23, 2015 

  
 
MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER at 6:02 p.m. by Mayor Wood in the Executive Board 
Room at the Civic Center, 5000 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, California. 
 
ROLL CALL:  PRESENT: Mayor Jeff Wood 
 Vice Mayor Ron Piazza 
 Council Member Steve Croft 
 Council Member Diane DuBois 
 Council Member Todd Rogers (arrived 6:28 p.m.) 
 

. . . 
 
WATER CONSERVATION STUDY SESSION 
James Glancy, Director of Water Resources, displayed slides and provided a water 
conservation update showing monthly production percentages below May 2013 totals, lower 
per person daily usage and documented compliance numbers.  He noted that the average 
water use for the past three weeks had been down 29 percent. 
 
Public Works Director Lisa Rapp continued the slide presentation by providing photographic 
examples of landscape medians with drought adaptive planting from various local 
jurisdictions.  She stated that over two million square feet of medians and panels were 
landscaped and irrigated with recycled and potable water.  She identified some of the 
possibilities for proposed improvements such as the Paramount Boulevard turf replacement 
project.  Some of the next steps included pursuing a grant opportunity and authorizing 
Willdan, under their on-call agreement, to prepare a Master Plan of Arterial and Remnant 
Parcels, which would include cost estimates for conversion, functioned as a planning and 
budgeting tool and would assist staff in seeking grants. 
 
Mr. Glancy identified some of the potential water infrastructure improvements such as 
reservoir; solar array; wells and equipment; water main replacement; meter replacement with 
smart meters and construction of reclaimed water line. 
 
Ms. Perkin outlined the water resources budget illustrating the loss of revenue and the impact 
to the fund balance.  She stated that assuming water consumption remained at low levels, by 
June 30, 2016, reserves would near the minimum level necessary to support operations and 
that water consumption rates would need to increase by ten percent per year through 2021 
just to cover basic operations and replacement programs.  She discussed one-time or 
intermittent sources of revenue such as the sale of water properties, leasing water rights, no 
and low interest financing and grants.  She explained the various types of water rates and 
stated it would be recommended at the regular meeting that the City Council approve 
adoption of fiscal year 2015-2016 water rate structure which increased the commodity rate by 
ten percent and decreased the number of units offered at the discount rate by two. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
WATER CONSERVATION STUDY SESSION - Continued 
Council Member Rogers expressed frustration with the economic impact to residents for their 
water conservation efforts.  He emphasized the importance of educating residents on the 
necessity for the rate change. 
 
Council Member Croft and Vice Mayor Piazza noted that as members of the Water 
Committee, they had explored options to supplement revenues and would be reviewing the 
capital improvement projects to determine if any could be deferred. 
 
Mr. Glancy added that different strategies would be developed over the next few months to 
devise a long-term plan to allow the rate system to be more flexible. 
 
Ms. Rapp reported that Lakewood had been working with other cities to develop a Watershed 
Management Program and had a long term requirement to address watershed health and 
water quality.  A potential project had been identified for Mayfair Park to divert and infiltrate 
or use flow from the Clark Channel while a similar alternative project site could be 
considered for Bolivar Park.  Caltrans had funding available in the current budget and were 
willing to partner with the City on a project.  Such funds could only be utilized for 
stormwater and runoff quality improvement projects and the agreement required execution by 
June 30, 2015.  After an agreement with Caltrans had been finalized, the project would begin 
with an engineering design study, staff would prepare an RFP for an engineering study and 
return to Council for approval of a consulting agreement. 
 

. . . 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to be brought before the City Council, Mayor Wood 
adjourned the meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Jo Mayberry, CMC 
City Clerk 
 



 

Minutes 
Lakewood City Council 

Regular Meeting held 
June 23, 2015 

  
 
MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER at 7:35 p.m. by Mayor Wood in the Council Chambers at 
the Civic Center, 5000 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, California. 
 
INVOCATION was offered by Dr. Bill Cox, Victory Through Jesus Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was led by Girl Scout Troop 3433/113 
 
ROLL CALL:  PRESENT: Mayor Jeff Wood 
 Vice Mayor Ron Piazza 
 Council Member Steve Croft 
 Council Member Diane DuBois 
 Council Member Todd Rogers 
 

. . . 
 
Mayor Wood explained the process for anyone in the audience wishing to submit a written 
protest to either the refuse or water rate proposed increases. 
 

. . . 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 
Mayor Wood announced that the meeting would be adjourned in memory of Bill Holt, who 
had a long and distinguished career with local government and had served as the City 
Prosecutor for Lakewood. 
 
Mayor Wood thanked staff as well as personnel from the Sheriff’s and Fire departments and 
other public agencies for their work on the LYS Opening Day and Public Safety Expo. 
 
The Mayor also announced that the upcoming Lakewood High School alumni picnic would 
be held on July 12 at Del Valle Park. 
 
Sarah Ambrose, American Cancer Society, presented a plaque to the City Council on the 
success of the recent Relay for Life event held at Lakewood High School. 
 
Mayor Wood presented an Award of Merit to Scott Bauman, a longtime Lakewood resident, 
who had been a recreation employee and a Community Safety Commissioner, and would be 
relocating to the great Northwest. 
 

. . . 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS: 
Council Member DuBois requested that Routine Item 1 be considered separately. 
 
Council Member Rogers requested that Routine Item 12 be considered separately. 
 
Mayor Wood stated that a request had been made to pull Routine Item 11.  There being no 
objection, it was so ordered. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS MOVED AND VICE MAYOR PIAZZA SECONDED TO 
APPROVE ROUTINE ITEMS 2 THROUGH 10. 
 
RI-2 Approval of Personnel Transactions 
 
RI-3 Approval of Registers of Demands 
 
RI-4 Approval of Report of Monthly Investment Transactions 
 
RI-5 Approval of Mayfair Pool Heater Replacement 
 
RI-6 RESOLUTION NO. 2015-20;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD ESTABLISHING DISABLED PERSON 
DESIGNATED PARKING ON THE EAST SIDE OF FACULTY AVENUE 
WITHIN THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD 

 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2015-21;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD ESTABLISHING DISABLED PERSON 
DESIGNATED PARKING ON THE EAST SIDE OF WHITEWOOD AVENUE 
WITHIN THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD 

 
RI-7 Ratification of Amendment to Agreement for Legal and Training Services with 

Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 
 
RI-8 Acceptance of Notice of Completion for Public Works Project No. 13-5, West San 

Gabriel River Parkway Nature Trail and 2014/15 Park Projects, CS Legacy 
 
RI-9 Approval of Agreement for Cost Sharing for the Installation of Monitoring 

Equipment and Monitoring Pursuant to the Harbor Toxic Pollutants Total Maximum 
Daily Load (TMDL) 

 
RI-10 Adoption of 2014 Greater Los Angeles County Integrated Regional Water 

Management Plan 
 
UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2015 
Page 3 
 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS:  Continued 
RI-1 Approval of Minutes of the Meeting held June 9, 2015 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER ROGERS MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER CROFT 
SECONDED TO APPROVE ROUTINE ITEM 1.  UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE 
MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS: COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois 
 
RI-12 Approval of Agreement with Macerich Lakewood LP for Law Enforcement Services 

at Lakewood Center Mall 
 
Council Member Rogers commented that since the incident last August regarding Deputy 
Brandon Love, he felt that there had been issues with the perception of safety at the mall.  
He recalled having received assurances from the owners that the mall operators would be 
taking steps to make Lakewood shoppers feel more comfortable.  He expressed concern 
that the proposed agreement represented a reduction in the amount of money committed 
for deputy services at the mall and that the Safety Center would be relocating from its 
current location.  He reported that he would have no problem approving the item but that 
it was necessary that the City Council be fully informed to make sure that these changes 
would not have a material effect on the shopping experience at the mall. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER ROGERS MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS 
SECONDED TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH MACERICH LAKEWOOD LP, 
AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE AGREEMENT AND REQUEST THAT 
COUNCIL RECEIVE STAFF UPDATES ON SECURITY ENHANCEMENTS AS WELL 
AS QUARTERLY REPORTS ON STATISTICS ON CRIME AND CALLS FOR SERVICE 
AT LAKEWOOD MALL FROM AUGUST 2014 UNTIL JUNE 2016.  UPON ROLL CALL 
VOTE, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 

. . . 
 
1.1 • AMENDMENTS TO THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEARS 2014-15/2015-16 
City Attorney Steve Skolnik explained that staff had requested that an item regarding the 
acquisition and funding of surplus helicopter and equipment be considered for approval.  He 
explained the provisions of the Brown Act and stated that since the matter arose subsequent 
to the posting of the agenda and required immediate action by the City Council, it would be 
appropriate for the City Council to vote to add this item to the agenda. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER CROFT MOVED AND VICE MAYOR PIAZZA SECONDED TO 
ADD TO THE AGENDA ITEM 1.1.E.43, APPROVAL OF ACQUISITION AND 
FUNDING OF SURPLUS HELICOPTER AND EQUIPMENT. 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2015 
Page 4 
 
 
1.1 • AMENDMENTS TO THE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-15/2015-16 - Continued 
UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 
City Manager Howard Chambers displayed slides and reported that the City was currently 
entering the second year of its tenth two-year budget.  He reviewed the current Economic 
Climate, including higher retail sales and property values and lower unemployment and 
deficit numbers and noted the impacts of legislative actions in Sacramento.  He highlighted 
Revenues and Appropriations as well as the Focus Areas, which included Budget for 
sustainability; Keep Lakewood safe; Enhance parks and open space; Foster a sense of 
community; Support a caring community; Preserve neighborhood quality of life; Promote 
economic vitality; Highlight government transparency; Defend traditional right to contract; 
and Protect the environment.  He also discussed the budget impacts of State and Federal 
regulations related to the drought as well as to capital improvement projects. 
 
Steve Skolnik, City Attorney, stated that 1.1.b was his annual memo to the City Council 
which explained the actions necessary to implement the budget.  He advised that all of the 
budget documents could be considered at the same public hearing and adopted by a single 
roll call vote, however, since written protests had been received regarding items 1.1.e.34 & 
35, each would be considered as separate public hearing items. 
 
1.1.e.34 – Adjusting Residential Refuse Rates 
Administrative Services Director Diane Perkin gave a brief presentation based on the memo 
in the agenda and stated that the proposed increase to residential refuse rates was directly 
related to increases in tipping fees and fuel costs.  She noted that due to the time required for 
noticing the increase, the initial fee increase of two percent had been estimated, and the 
actual increase would be less, at 0.62 percent. Ms. Perkin added that the new residential 
refuse rate would be effective and reflected on billings for refuse collection usage on July 1st. 
 
Mayor Wood opened the public hearing at 8:23 p.m. and called for anyone in the audience 
wishing to address the City Council on this matter. 
 
E. Zimmer, Lakewood, stated that she had submitted the written protests and expressed her 
opposition to the rate increases. 
 
The City Attorney stated that there had been a total of 235 written protests received regarding 
the rate increase for refuse collection.  Mr. Skolnik reported that with over 22,000 residential 
refuse accounts, the protests did not meet the threshold and the proposed rate adjustment 
could go forward. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-33;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LAKEWOOD TO ESTABLISH RESIDENTIAL REFUSE RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2015-2016 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2015 
Page 5 
 
 
1.1 • AMENDMENTS TO THE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-15/2015-16 
1.1.e.34 – Adjusting Residential Refuse Rates  - Continued 
VICE MAYOR PIAZZA MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER CROFT SECONDED TO 
ADOPT RESOLUTION 2015-33.  UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION WAS 
APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 
1.1.e.35 – Pertaining to Water Rates and Charges 
The Director of Administrative Services gave a presentation based on the memo in the 
agenda and stated that many factors were considered in determining the proposed water rates 
such as increases in operating costs, electrical energy and water replenishment costs and over 
$35 million in capital improvements required over the next five years.  The proposed water 
consumption rate increase raised the typical residential monthly bill by $6.38.  She concluded 
by stating that it was recommended that the City Council hold a public hearing and adopt the 
proposed resolution. 
 
Council Member Rogers expressed concern at the negative impact of residents being charged 
a higher rate for their water conservation efforts. 
 
Council Member Croft maintained that the City had a history of managing its water well by 
investing in infrastructure and making prudent decisions to maintain the quality of life. 
 
Mayor Wood opened the public hearing at 8:39 p.m. and called for anyone in the audience 
wishing to address the City Council on this matter.  There was no response. 
 
The City Attorney stated that there had been a total of 235 written protests received regarding 
the rate increase for water.  Mr. Skolnik reported that with over 19,600 water service 
accounts, the protests were well below the threshold and the proposed rate adjustment could 
go forward. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-34;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LAKEWOOD AMENDING THE “NORMAL QUANTITATIVE RATE” CONTAINED 
IN SECTION 10 OF THE CITY’S “WATER SERVICE PROCEDURE MANUAL,” AND 
AMENDING THE RECLAIMED WATER RATE 
 
VICE MAYOR PIAZZA MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS SECONDED TO 
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2015-34.  UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION WAS 
APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 
The City Attorney stated an additional public hearing needed to be held on the remainder of 
the budget items: 1.1.c, 1.1.d, 1.1.e, 1.1.e.1 through 33 and 1.1.e.36 through 43. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2015 
Page 6 
 
 
1.1 • AMENDMENTS TO THE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-15/2015-16 - Continued 
c.  RESOLUTION NO. 2015-22;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015, 
AND AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION OF RESERVE FUNDS INTO 
APPROPRIATE FUNDS AS OF JUNE 30, 2015 
 
d.  RESOLUTION NO. 2015-23;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD DETERMINING THE TOTAL ANNUAL APPROPRIATION 
SUBJECT TO LIMITATION OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
2015-2016 
 
e.  RESOLUTION NO. 2015-24;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD ADOPTING THE BUDGET AND APPROPRIATING REVENUE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 
 

1) RESOLUTION NO. 2015-25;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES TO CERTIFY TO CITY LIGHT AND POWER 
LAKEWOOD, INC., THAT BASIC FEE PAYMENTS HAVE BEEN INCLUDED IN 
THE BUDGET 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-26;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATIVE 
SERVICES TO CERTIFY TO CITY LIGHT AND POWER LAKEWOOD, INC., THAT 
BASIC FEE PAYMENTS HAVE BEEN INCLUDED IN THE BUDGET 
 
2) RESOLUTION NO. 2015-27;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 2014-28 
PERTAINING TO HOURLY-RATED PART-TIME EMPLOYEES AND ENACTING 
A PERSONNEL RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE COMPENSATION, RULES 
AND REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO HOURLY-RATED PART-TIME 
EMPLOYEES 
 
3) RESOLUTION NO. 2015-28;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD AMENDING AND RENEWING A COMMUNITY 
RECREATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT WITH THE ABC UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 
 
4) RESOLUTION NO. 2015-29;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD RENEWING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF LAKEWOOD AND COMMUNITY FAMILY GUIDANCE CENTER PROVIDING 
COUNSELING SERVICES FOR FAMILIES AND JUVENILE RESIDENTS OF THE 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2015 
Page 7 
 
 
1.1 • AMENDMENTS TO THE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-15/2015-16 - Continued 

5) RESOLUTION NO. 2015-30;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD RENEWING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD AND THE HUMAN SERVICES ASSOCIATION (HSA) TO 
PROVIDE SERVICES FOR SENIOR ADULT RESIDENTS OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
6) RESOLUTION NO. 2015-31;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD RENEWING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF LAKEWOOD AND LAKEWOOD MEALS ON WHEELS FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2015-2016 
 
7) RESOLUTION NO. 2015-32;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD RENEWING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF LAKEWOOD AND THE PATHWAYS VOLUNTEER HOSPICE, INC. 
PROVIDING SERVICES FOR TERMINALLY ILL RESIDENTS OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
8) Amendment to Agreement with Merchants Building Maintenance for Custodial 
Services 
 
9) Agreement for Charter Bus Services with Pacific Coachways 
 
10) License Agreement with Southern California Edison for Use of Candleverde Park 
 
11) Agreement with Trend Offset Printing for Catalog Publications 
 
12) Agreements with TruGreen LandCare for Median Landscape Maintenance and 
Mowing Services 
 
13) Agreement with Abilita LA for Telecommunications Services 
 
14) Extension of Agreement for Engineering Services with Associated Soils Engineering 
 
15) Extension of Agreement for Hardscape Maintenance with CJ Construction 
 
16) Authorize Purchase Order with CR&R, Inc. for Street Sweeping Debris Recycling 
 
17) Agreement with Dekra-Lite for Centre Decor 
 
18) Extension of Agreement for Electrical Contracting Services with Fineline Electric 
 
19) Extension of Agreement for Elevator Maintenance and Repair Services with Liftech 
Elevator Services 
 
20) Extension of Agreement for Transportation Planning and Engineering Services 
Agreement with LSA Associates, Inc. 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2015 
Page 8 
 
 
1.1 • AMENDMENTS TO THE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-15/2015-16 - Continued 

21) Amendment to Agreement for On Call Architectural Services with Meyer & 
Associates 
 
22) Extension of Agreement for Engineering and Traffic Survey Services with Newport 
Traffic Studies 
 
23) Amendment to Agreement for Engineering Services with Reedcorp Engineering 
 
24) Extension of Agreement for Environmental Services with S.C.S. Consultants 
 
25) Amendment to Agreement for Animal Control Services with SEAACA 
 
26) Extension of Agreement for Street Banner Marketing Program with Sierra 
Installations, Inc. 
 
27) Extension of Agreement for HVAC Preventative Maintenance Services with Velocity 
Air Engineering 
 
28) Amendment to Agreement for Tree Maintenance with West Coast Arborists 
 
29) Amendment to Agreement for Engineering Services with Willdan 
 
30) Agreement with Western Printing and Graphics for Preparation of City Informational 
Periodicals 
 
31) Extension of Reimbursement Agreement for Long Beach Transit Fixed Route and 
Dial-A-Lift Services 
 
32) Renewal of Agreement with Fair Housing Consulting Services 
 
33) Agreement for the Fix Up/Paint Up Program 
 
36) Amendment to Agreement for Refuse Collection with EDCO Waste Services 
 
37) Prefunding of PARS Retirement Plan 
 
38) Renewal of Agreement for Information Technology Support with BreaIT 
 
39) Renewal of Agreement with Infosend, Inc. for Printing, Mailing and Online Bill Pay 
Services 
 
40) Agreement with Pun Group LLC for Audit Services 
 
41) Agreement for Provision of City Attorney Services 
 
42) Amendment to the Agreement with the City Manager 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2015 
Page 9 
 
 
1.1 • AMENDMENTS TO THE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-15/2015-16 - Continued 

43) Acquisition and Funding of Surplus Helicopter and Equipment 
 
Mayor Wood opened the public hearing at 8:41 p.m. and called for anyone in the audience 
wishing to address the City Council on this matter.  There was no response. 
 
VICE MAYOR PIAZZA MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER CROFT SECONDED TO 
APPROVE ITEMS 1.1.C, D AND E, E.1 THROUGH E.33 AND E.36 THROUGH E.43.  
UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 

. . . 
 
1.2 • AWARD OF BID FOR PURCHASING BID 01-15, VARIOUS IRRIGATION 
MATERIALS 
The Director of Administrative Services gave a report based on the memo in the agenda 
stating that bid packages had been distributed soliciting bids for various irrigation materials 
and that two sealed bids had been received.  It was the recommendation of staff that the City 
Council hold a public hearing and authorize the purchase of irrigation materials from 
Hydro-Scape in the amount of $23,510.21. 
 
Mayor Wood opened the public hearing at 8:43 p.m. and called for anyone in the audience 
wishing to address the City Council on this matter.  There was no response. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER CROFT MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS 
SECONDED TO APPROVE STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION.  UPON ROLL CALL 
VOTE, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 

. . . 
 
3.1 • PREVIEW OF 2015 CIVIC CENTER BLOCK PARTY 
Lisa Litzinger, Director of Recreation and Community Services, displayed slides and made a 
presentation based on the memo in the agenda.  She reported that the City’s annual Civic 
Center Block Party would be held on June 27th.  Highlights of the event included a Family 
Fun Zone; “A Taste of Lakewood” specialty food event; live entertainment by pop band, 
“The Zippers”; a Beverage Garden; “Shop Lakewood” promotion; and concluded with a 
fireworks show.  She concluded by stating that the Block Party was one of the City’s most 
popular special events. 
 

. . . 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2015 
Page 10 
 
 
3.2 • DECLARING JULY AS “PARKS MAKE LIFE BETTERSM” MONTH 
The Recreation and Community Services Director displayed slides and made a presentation 
regarding Parks and Recreation month.  She reviewed the “Parks Make Life BetterSM!” 
campaign which emphasized that parks and recreation programs enriched lives and added 
value to the community’s homes and neighborhoods.  She concluded by recommending the 
City Council adopt the proposed resolution declaring July as “Parks Make Life Better” and 
Parks and Recreation Month in the City of Lakewood. 
 
RESOLUTION 2015-35;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LAKEWOOD DECLARING JULY AS PARKS MAKE LIFE BETTER!® MONTH 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER ROGERS 
SECONDED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2015-35.  UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE 
MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 

. . . 
 
3.3 • AMENDMENTS FOR IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENTS FOR THE LOWER 
LOS ANGELES RIVER, THE LOS CERRITOS CHANNEL AND LOWER SAN 
GABRIEL RIVER WATERSHEDS 
Lisa Rapp, Director of Public Works displayed slides and made a presentation based on the 
report in the agenda packet.  She provided a brief history and timeline regarding the 
Watershed Management Program noting the City had been situated in three separate drainage 
watersheds.  The implementation of the Watershed Management Program and Coordinated 
Integrated Monitoring Program for the Lower Los Angeles River, the Los Cerritos Channel 
and the Lower San Gabriel River watershed would be multi-city efforts and that participating 
cities were assessed costs based on formulas as detailed in the respective amendments to the 
Memorandum of Understanding.  The annual contribution for the amendments would vary 
depending on the required monitoring and special studies needed to comply with the 
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System Permit.  The City’s annual contribution for all three 
watersheds had been estimated at $170,433 with funds included in the fiscal year 2015-2016 
budget.  She concluded by stating that staff recommended that the City Council approve 
Amendment No. 1 to the Memorandum of Understanding with the Gateway Water 
Management Authority for the implementation of the Watershed Management Program and 
Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program for each of the Watershed Committees of the 
Lower Los Angeles River – Reach 1, the Los Cerritos Channel and the Lower San Gabriel 
River. 
 
Richard Watson, lead consultant for the Los Cerritos Channel Watershed Management 
Program, identified the locations of existing and future principal monitoring stations and 
stated that they were designed to help track the source of pollutants. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2015 
Page 11 
 
 
3.3 • AMENDMENTS FOR IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENTS FOR THE LOWER 
LOS ANGELES RIVER, THE LOS CERRITOS CHANNEL AND LOWER SAN 
GABRIEL RIVER WATERSHEDS - Continued 
COUNCIL MEMBER ROGERS MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS 
SECONDED TO APPROVE THE GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 
AND COORDINATED INTEGRATED MONITORING PROGRAM AMENDMENTS 
NO. 1 FOR EACH OF THE MEMORANDUMS OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE 
LOWER LOS ANGELES RIVER – REACH 1 WATERSHED COMMITTEE, THE LOS 
CERRITOS CHANNEL WATERSHED COMMITTEE AND THE LOWER SAN 
GABRIEL RIVER WATERSHED COMMITTEE.  UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE 
MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 

. . . 
 
3.4 • APPROVAL OF COOPERATIVE IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENT WITH 
CALTRANS FOR STORMWATER PROJECT 
The Public Works Director displayed slides and made a presentation based on the report in 
the agenda packet and stated that the City had been working with other cities to develop a 
Watershed Management Program (WMP) to set forth programs and projects to help the cities 
achieve compliance with the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System permit.  Caltrans had 
offered to partner with the City by providing a grant of full funding for a project. The WMP 
identified a potential project in Mayfair Park adjacent to the Clark Channel which would 
divert water into a pretreatment facility. As an alternative project, a similar design would be 
considered for the Del Amo Channel at Bolivar Park, which would have the added benefit of 
reducing the use of potable water for irrigation. The projects would meet Caltrans criteria, 
and make a positive impact on water quality within the watershed. Ms. Rapp reported that 
staff had been working closely with Caltrans staff, the watershed consultant, Richard Watson 
and Associates, and the City Attorney to develop acceptable language in the Cooperative 
Implementation Agreement. There would be a time limit on the funds; the funds obligated 
before June 30, 2015 must be spent within two years, and the funds obligated in the 
subsequent year would have one additional year.  She concluded by stating that staff 
recommended that the City Council approve a Cooperative Implementation Agreement with 
Caltrans for a Stormwater and Urban Runoff Infiltration Project and authorize the Mayor to 
sign the agreement in a form approved by the City Attorney. 
 
Ms. Rapp confirmed for Council Member DuBois that information had been prepared for 
both opportunities at Mayfair and Bolivar parks. 
 
Responding to Vice Mayor Piazza’s inquiry regarding the timeline, Mr. Watson stated that 
there were two sets of overlapping periods and that deadlines were being negotiated. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2015 
Page 12 
 
 
3.4 • APPROVAL OF COOPERATIVE IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENT WITH 
CALTRANS FOR STORMWATER PROJECT - Continued 
COUNCIL MEMBER CROFT MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS 
SECONDED TO APPROVE STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION.  UPON ROLL CALL 
VOTE, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 

. . . 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
John Hoop, founder of Hoop Foundation, addressed the City Council regarding Giving 
Tuesday, celebrating a day of giving, which would be held on Tuesday, December 1, 2015. 
 

. . . 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to be brought before the City Council, Mayor Wood 
adjourned the meeting at 9:35 p.m.  A moment of silence was observed in memory of Bill 
Holt. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Jo Mayberry, CMC 
City Clerk 





















































































For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Summary Statement

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Total Cash Basis Earnings

Plus Net Realized Gains/Losses

Less Purchased Interest Related to Interest/Coupons

Interest/Dividends/Coupons Received

Earnings Reconciliation (Cash Basis) - Managed Account

Less Beginning Accrued Interest

Less Beginning Amortized Value of Securities

Less Cost of New Purchases

Plus Coupons/Dividends Received

Plus Proceeds of Maturities/Calls/Principal Payments

Plus Proceeds from Sales

Ending Accrued Interest

Ending Amortized Value of Securities

Earnings Reconciliation (Accrual Basis)

$36,109,973.61 

 0.00 

(1,930,028.52)

 1,944,863.74 

 0.00 

(39,941.13)

$36,084,867.70 

 34,485.58 

(451.36)

(30,364.84)

$3,669.38 

Total

 36,038,268.60 

 73,274.03 

 1,943,820.77 

 0.00 

 20,693.33 

(1,945,315.10)

(36,025,111.37)

(77,042.09)

Total Accrual Basis Earnings $28,588.17 

Closing Market Value

Change in Current Value

Unsettled Trades

Principal Acquisitions

Principal Dispositions

Maturities/Calls

Opening Market Value

Transaction Summary - Managed Account

_________________

_________________

_______________________________________________ _______________________________________________ Reconciling Transactions

Net Cash Contribution

Security Purchases

Principal Payments

Coupon/Interest/Dividend Income

Sale Proceeds

Maturities/Calls

Cash Transactions Summary - Managed Account

 0.00 

 1,943,820.77 

 20,693.33 

 0.00 

(1,945,315.10)

(7,154.21)

 0.00 

Cash Balance

$57,677.14 Closing Cash Balance

Account 51260100 Page 1



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Portfolio Summary and Statistics

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Account Summary

Percent Par Value Market ValueDescription

U.S. Treasury Bond / Note  15,675,000.00  15,705,271.98  43.52 

Municipal Bond / Note  450,000.00  450,579.25  1.25 

Federal Agency Collateralized Mortgage 

Obligation

 762,770.26  767,015.52  2.13 

Federal Agency Bond / Note  3,135,000.00  3,144,001.29  8.71 

Corporate Note  10,185,000.00  10,223,666.62  28.33 

Certificate of Deposit  5,800,000.00  5,794,333.04  16.06 

Managed Account Sub-Total 36,007,770.26 36,084,867.70 100.00%

Accrued Interest  73,274.03 

Total Portfolio 36,007,770.26 36,158,141.73

Unsettled Trades  0.00  0.00 

Sector Allocation 

16.06%
Cert of Deposit

28.33%
Corporate Note

2.13%
Fed Agency CMO

8.71%

Fed Agy Bond /
Note

1.25%
Muni Bond / Note

43.52%
US TSY Bond / Note

0 - 6 Months 6 - 12 Months 1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years 3 - 4 Years 4 - 5 Years Over 5 Years

0.76%

10.11%

49.07%

40.06%

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Maturity Distribution Characteristics

Yield to Maturity at Cost

Yield to Maturity at Market

Duration to Worst

Weighted Average Days to Maturity

 1.79 

 673 

0.92%

0.82%

Account 51260100 Page 2



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Issuer Summary

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Credit Quality (S&P Ratings)

8.71%
A

8.86%
A+

1.54%
A-

4.49%
A-1

1.53%
A-1+

1.85%
AA

56.86%
AA+

13.32%
AA-

2.84%
AAA

Issuer Summary 

Percentof HoldingsIssuer

Market Value

 200,651.60  0.56 AMERICAN EXPRESS CO

 650,934.09  1.80 AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE

 902,692.80  2.50 APPLE INC

 724,572.25  2.01 BANK OF NEW YORK CO INC

 724,885.45  2.01 BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA

 491,028.51  1.36 BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC

 275,297.00  0.76 CA ST DEPT OF WATER REV BONDS

 723,803.75  2.01 CANADIAN IMPERIAL BANK OF COMMERCE

 395,618.57  1.10 CATERPILLAR INC

 627,220.63  1.74 CISCO SYSTEMS INC

 124,909.13  0.35 CONOCOPHILLIPS

 560,375.76  1.55 DEERE & COMPANY

 749,391.00  2.08 EXXON MOBIL CORP

 1,468,718.80  4.06 FANNIE MAE

 1,683,781.97  4.66 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS

 758,516.04  2.10 FREDDIE MAC

 550,853.05  1.53 GLAXOSMITHKLINE PLC

 850,200.05  2.36 HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

 894,285.00  2.48 IBM CORP

 802,304.00  2.22 JP MORGAN CHASE & CO

 356,292.95  0.99 MCDONALD'S CORPORATION

 722,915.63  2.00 NORDEA BANK AB

 960,120.25  2.66 PEPSICO, INC

 897,354.00  2.49 RABOBANK NEDERLAND

 724,996.38  2.01 TORONTO-DOMINION BANK

 385,251.02  1.07 TOYOTA MOTOR CORP

 15,705,271.98  43.51 UNITED STATES TREASURY

 175,282.25  0.49 UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

 724,595.45  2.01 US BANCORP

 547,309.71  1.52 WELLS FARGO & COMPANY

 725,438.63  2.01 WESTPAC BANKING CORP NY

Account 51260100 Page 3



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Issuer Summary

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

$36,084,867.70 Total  100.00%

Account 51260100 Page 4



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Rating Rating Date Date Cost at Cost Interest Cost Value

Security Type/Description S&P Moody's Original YTM Accrued Amortized MarketTrade Settle

Par

U.S. Treasury Bond / Note

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2009 3.250% 06/30/2016

 385,781.25  385,148.93  33.12  406,201.17 05/31/1305/24/13AaaAA+ 375,000.00 912828KZ2 0.53

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 08/31/2011 1.000% 08/31/2016

 488,486.18  487,871.79  1,621.06  491,119.33 03/03/1402/27/14AaaAA+ 485,000.00 912828RF9 0.49

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2011 0.875% 11/30/2016

 1,785,399.73  1,781,342.82  1,315.49  1,788,728.52 11/01/1310/31/13AaaAA+ 1,775,000.00 912828RU6 0.62

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2011 0.875% 11/30/2016

 2,092,186.72  2,088,494.47  1,541.53  2,097,875.00 12/03/1311/27/13AaaAA+ 2,080,000.00 912828RU6 0.58

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 01/03/2012 0.875% 12/31/2016

 1,156,737.85  1,153,141.55  27.34  1,154,312.50 12/09/1412/05/14AaaAA+ 1,150,000.00 912828RX0 0.69

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 05/31/2012 0.625% 05/31/2017

 1,999,688.00  1,992,867.66  1,058.74  1,988,906.25 06/03/1406/02/14AaaAA+ 2,000,000.00 912828SY7 0.81

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/02/2012 0.750% 06/30/2017

 676,318.28  674,484.27  13.76  674,314.46 11/03/1410/30/14AaaAA+ 675,000.00 912828TB6 0.79

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/31/2012 0.500% 07/31/2017

 697,538.80  695,062.70  1,459.94  694,148.44 02/10/1502/06/15AaaAA+ 700,000.00 912828TG5 0.84

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/31/2012 0.500% 07/31/2017

 1,893,319.60  1,894,963.06  3,962.71  1,893,988.28 02/04/1502/02/15AaaAA+ 1,900,000.00 912828TG5 0.63

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 09/30/2010 1.875% 09/30/2017

 707,465.28  702,723.79  3,252.05  707,303.91 09/04/1409/02/14AaaAA+ 690,000.00 912828PA2 1.04

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

 696,445.40  695,376.84  1,319.67  694,941.41 03/27/1503/26/15AaaAA+ 700,000.00 912828UU2 0.99

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

 1,144,160.30  1,142,363.74  2,168.03  1,141,644.53 03/27/1503/26/15AaaAA+ 1,150,000.00 912828UU2 1.00

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

 1,188,931.79  1,185,595.64  2,252.87  1,184,450.39 02/27/1502/26/15AaaAA+ 1,195,000.00 912828UU2 1.04

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/30/2013 0.625% 04/30/2018

 792,812.80  793,919.99  842.39  793,562.50 04/30/1504/28/15AaaAA+ 800,000.00 912828UZ1 0.90

Account 51260100 Page 5



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Rating Rating Date Date Cost at Cost Interest Cost Value

Security Type/Description S&P Moody's Original YTM Accrued Amortized MarketTrade Settle

Par

 20,868.70  15,705,271.98  15,673,357.25  0.77  15,711,496.69  15,675,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total

Municipal Bond / Note

CA ST DEPT OF WATER TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 09/27/2012 0.650% 12/01/2015

 275,297.00  275,000.00  148.96  275,000.00 09/27/1209/19/12Aa1AAA 275,000.00 13066KX87 0.65

UNIV OF CAL TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 10/02/2013 0.907% 05/15/2016

 75,221.25  75,000.00  86.92  75,000.00 10/02/1309/26/13Aa2AA 75,000.00 91412GSX4 0.91

UNIV OF CAL TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 03/14/2013 0.659% 05/15/2016

 100,061.00  100,000.00  84.21  100,000.00 03/14/1302/28/13Aa2AA 100,000.00 91412GPX7 0.66

 320.09  450,579.25  450,000.00  0.69  450,000.00  450,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total

Federal Agency Collateralized Mortgage Obligation

FNMA SERIES 2012-M13 ASQ2

DTD 09/01/2012 1.246% 08/01/2017

 595,747.15  593,744.95  615.49  594,969.99 06/23/1506/18/15AaaAA+ 592,770.26 3136A8G38 0.99

FNMA SERIES 2015-M7 ASQ2

DTD 04/01/2015 1.550% 04/01/2018

 171,268.37  170,778.96  219.58  171,699.39 04/30/1504/15/15AaaAA+ 170,000.00 3136ANJY4 0.83

 835.07  767,015.52  764,523.91  0.95  766,669.38  762,770.26 Security Type Sub-Total

Federal Agency Bond / Note

FNMA NOTES

DTD 08/19/2011 1.250% 09/28/2016

 282,700.60  281,730.57  904.17  284,135.60 10/03/1310/01/13AaaAA+ 280,000.00 3135G0CM3 0.75

FNMA NOTES

DTD 08/19/2011 1.250% 09/28/2016

 419,002.68  417,605.78  1,340.10  421,227.53 10/03/1310/01/13AaaAA+ 415,000.00 3135G0CM3 0.74

FHLB NOTES

DTD 08/07/2014 0.500% 09/28/2016

 975,231.08  973,724.44  1,259.38  972,806.25 08/07/1408/06/14AaaAA+ 975,000.00 3130A2T97 0.61

FHLB GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 05/15/2015 0.625% 05/30/2017

 708,550.89  709,447.12  382.12  709,410.70 05/15/1505/14/15AaaAA+ 710,000.00 3130A5EP0 0.67

FREDDIE MAC GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 06/25/2012 1.000% 07/28/2017

 758,516.04  754,964.87  3,208.75  754,949.41 08/14/1408/12/14AaaAA+ 755,000.00 3137EADJ5 1.00

 7,094.52  3,144,001.29  3,137,472.78  0.75  3,142,529.49  3,135,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total

Account 51260100 Page 6



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Rating Rating Date Date Cost at Cost Interest Cost Value

Security Type/Description S&P Moody's Original YTM Accrued Amortized MarketTrade Settle

Par

Corporate Note

PEPSICO INC GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 02/28/2013 0.700% 02/26/2016

 285,173.57  284,978.03  692.71  284,900.25 02/28/1302/25/13A1A 285,000.00 713448CE6 0.71

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 02/26/2013 1.125% 02/26/2016

 802,304.00  799,786.58  3,125.00  799,032.00 02/26/1302/21/13A3A 800,000.00 46623EJU4 1.17

GLAXOSMITHKLINE CAP INC GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 03/18/2013 0.700% 03/18/2016

 550,853.05  549,886.12  1,101.53  549,609.50 10/02/1309/27/13A2A+ 550,000.00 377372AG2 0.73

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP

DTD 05/17/2013 0.800% 05/17/2016

 385,251.02  384,953.43  376.44  384,842.15 05/17/1305/14/13Aa3AA- 385,000.00 89236TAL9 0.81

WELLS FARGO & COMPANY

DTD 07/29/2013 1.250% 07/20/2016

 547,309.71  544,812.42  3,046.70  544,476.80 07/29/1307/22/13A2A+ 545,000.00 94974BFL9 1.28

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY FIN GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 08/15/2013 0.950% 08/15/2016

 491,028.51  489,901.99  1,758.56  489,740.30 08/15/1308/06/13Aa2AA 490,000.00 084664BX8 0.97

AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 10/10/2013 1.125% 10/07/2016

 315,900.59  314,531.01  826.88  313,903.80 10/10/1310/03/13A1A+ 315,000.00 02665WAB7 1.24

PEPSICO CORP NOTES

DTD 02/28/2014 0.950% 02/22/2017

 674,946.68  674,572.85  2,297.81  674,230.50 02/28/1402/25/14A1A 675,000.00 713448CL0 0.99

APPLE INC CORP NOTE

DTD 05/06/2014 1.050% 05/05/2017

 902,692.80  899,704.74  1,443.75  899,523.00 05/06/1404/29/14Aa1AA+ 900,000.00 037833AM2 1.07

JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP NOTES

DTD 06/12/2014 1.125% 06/12/2017

 560,375.76  559,828.15  332.50  559,736.80 06/12/1406/09/14A2A 560,000.00 24422ESN0 1.14

HSBC USA INC

DTD 06/23/2014 1.300% 06/23/2017

 299,856.30  299,697.32  86.67  299,544.00 06/23/1406/16/14A2A 300,000.00 40434CAA3 1.35

CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SE

DTD 08/20/2014 1.250% 08/18/2017

 395,618.57  394,858.67  1,824.13  394,802.50 08/20/1408/13/14A2A 395,000.00 14912L6D8 1.27

AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT CORP NOTES

DTD 09/23/2014 1.550% 09/22/2017

 200,651.60  199,799.85  852.50  199,732.00 09/23/1409/18/14A2A- 200,000.00 0258M0DR7 1.60

IBM CORP NOTES

DTD 02/06/2015 1.125% 02/06/2018

 894,285.00  897,617.93  4,078.13  897,255.00 02/06/1502/03/15Aa3AA- 900,000.00 459200HZ7 1.23

Account 51260100 Page 7



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Rating Rating Date Date Cost at Cost Interest Cost Value

Security Type/Description S&P Moody's Original YTM Accrued Amortized MarketTrade Settle

Par

Corporate Note

MCDONALDS CORP NOTES

DTD 02/29/2008 5.350% 03/01/2018

 356,292.95  359,635.96  5,795.83  362,612.25 04/07/1504/01/15A3A- 325,000.00 58013MEE0 1.27

EXXON MOBIL CORP NOTES

DTD 03/06/2015 1.305% 03/06/2018

 749,391.00  750,000.00  3,126.56  750,000.00 03/06/1503/04/15AaaAAA 750,000.00 30231GAL6 1.31

AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORP NOTES

DTD 03/13/2015 1.500% 03/13/2018

 335,033.50  334,595.13  1,507.50  334,551.10 03/13/1503/10/15A1A+ 335,000.00 02665WAT8 1.55

CONOCOPHILLIPS COMPANY CORP NOTE

DTD 05/18/2015 1.500% 05/15/2018

 124,909.13  124,985.58  223.96  124,985.00 05/18/1505/13/15A1A 125,000.00 20826FAL0 1.50

BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP

DTD 05/29/2015 1.600% 05/22/2018

 724,572.25  724,936.53  1,031.11  724,934.75 05/29/1505/22/15A1A+ 725,000.00 06406HDB2 1.60

CISCO SYSTEMS INC CORP NOTE

DTD 06/17/2015 1.650% 06/15/2018

 627,220.63  624,895.09  401.04  624,893.75 06/17/1506/10/15A1AA- 625,000.00 17275RAU6 1.66

 33,929.31  10,223,666.62  10,213,977.38  1.21  10,213,305.45  10,185,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total

Certificate of Deposit

WESTPAC BANKING CORP NY LT FLOAT CD

DTD 04/17/2014 0.455% 04/15/2016

 725,438.63  725,000.00  706.03  725,000.00 04/17/1404/16/14Aa2AA- 725,000.00 96121TWF1 0.41

BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA HOUS CD FLOAT

DTD 06/13/2014 0.462% 06/10/2016

 724,885.45  724,792.48  195.47  724,562.10 06/13/1406/11/14Aa2A+ 725,000.00 06417HMU7 0.28

HSBC BANK USA NA CD

DTD 02/13/2015 0.880% 08/15/2016

 550,343.75  550,000.00  1,855.33  550,000.00 02/13/1502/11/15P-1A-1+ 550,000.00 40428AC54 0.88

CANADIAN IMPERIAL BANK NY YCD

DTD 04/10/2015 1.010% 04/06/2017

 723,803.75  725,000.00  1,647.56  725,000.00 04/10/1504/06/15P-1A-1 725,000.00 13606JYY9 1.01

RABOBANK NEDERLAND NV CERT DEPOS

DTD 04/27/2015 1.070% 04/21/2017

 897,354.00  900,000.00  1,712.00  900,000.00 04/27/1504/22/15P-1A-1 900,000.00 21684BXH2 1.07

NORDEA BANK FINLAND NY CD

DTD 05/29/2015 1.150% 05/26/2017

 722,915.63  725,000.00  764.27  725,000.00 05/29/1505/27/15Aa3AA- 725,000.00 65558LFA5 1.15

TORONTO DOMINION BANK NY YCD

DTD 06/19/2015 1.240% 06/16/2017

 724,996.38  725,000.00  299.67  725,000.00 06/19/1506/16/15Aa1AA- 725,000.00 89113ESN7 1.25

Account 51260100 Page 8



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Rating Rating Date Date Cost at Cost Interest Cost Value

Security Type/Description S&P Moody's Original YTM Accrued Amortized MarketTrade Settle

Par

Certificate of Deposit

US BANK NA CINCINNATI (CALLABLE) CD

DTD 09/11/2014 1.375% 09/11/2017

 724,595.45  724,144.80  3,046.01  723,832.75 09/11/1409/09/14Aa3AA- 725,000.00 90333VPF1 1.41

 10,226.34  5,794,333.04  5,798,937.28  0.94  5,798,394.85  5,800,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total

 36,007,770.26  36,082,395.86  0.92  73,274.03  36,038,268.60  36,084,867.70 Managed Account Sub-Total

$36,007,770.26 $36,082,395.86 $73,274.03 $36,038,268.60 $36,084,867.70  0.92%

$36,158,141.73 

$73,274.03 

Total Investments

Accrued Interest

Securities Sub-Total

Account 51260100 Page 9



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Fair Market Value & Analytics

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Value On Cost Amort Cost to WorstCUSIP Broker Date PriceDated Date/Coupon/Maturity Par at Mkt

Market Unreal G/L Unreal G/L DurationNext Call MarketSecurity Type/Description YTMEffective

Duration

U.S. Treasury Bond / Note

 0.99  632.32 (20,419.92) 385,781.25  102.88 BNP PARI 375,000.00 912828KZ2US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2009 3.250% 06/30/2016

0.37 0.99 

 1.16  614.39 (2,633.15) 488,486.18  100.72 MORGANST 485,000.00 912828RF9US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 08/31/2011 1.000% 08/31/2016

0.38 1.16 

 1.41  4,056.91 (3,328.79) 1,785,399.73  100.59 CITIGRP 1,775,000.00 912828RU6US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2011 0.875% 11/30/2016

0.46 1.41 

 1.41  3,692.25 (5,688.28) 2,092,186.72  100.59 BARCLAYS 2,080,000.00 912828RU6US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2011 0.875% 11/30/2016

0.46 1.41 

 1.49  3,596.30  2,425.35  1,156,737.85  100.59 MERRILL 1,150,000.00 912828RX0US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 01/03/2012 0.875% 12/31/2016

0.48 1.49 

 1.90  6,820.34  10,781.75  1,999,688.00  99.98 CITIGRP 2,000,000.00 912828SY7US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 05/31/2012 0.625% 05/31/2017

0.63 1.90 

 1.98  1,834.01  2,003.82  676,318.28  100.20 MORGANST 675,000.00 912828TB6US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/02/2012 0.750% 06/30/2017

0.65 1.98 

 2.07  2,476.10  3,390.36  697,538.80  99.65 BARCLAYS 700,000.00 912828TG5US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/31/2012 0.500% 07/31/2017

0.67 2.07 

 2.07 (1,643.46)(668.68) 1,893,319.60  99.65 WELLSFAR 1,900,000.00 912828TG5US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/31/2012 0.500% 07/31/2017

0.67 2.07 

 2.20  4,741.49  161.37  707,465.28  102.53 MORGANST 690,000.00 912828PA2US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 09/30/2010 1.875% 09/30/2017

0.74 2.20 

 2.71  1,068.56  1,503.99  696,445.40  99.49 MERRILL 700,000.00 912828UU2US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

0.94 2.71 

 2.71  1,796.56  2,515.77  1,144,160.30  99.49 JPMCHASE 1,150,000.00 912828UU2US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

0.94 2.71 

 2.71  3,336.15  4,481.40  1,188,931.79  99.49 MORGANST 1,195,000.00 912828UU2US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/01/2013 0.750% 03/31/2018

0.94 2.71 

 2.80 (1,107.19)(749.70) 792,812.80  99.10 JPMCHASE 800,000.00 912828UZ1US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 04/30/2013 0.625% 04/30/2018

0.95 2.80 

(6,224.71)  0.65  1.95  31,914.73  15,705,271.98  15,675,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total  1.95

Municipal Bond / Note

 0.42  297.00  297.00  275,297.00  100.11 MORGANST 275,000.00 13066KX87CA ST DEPT OF WATER TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 09/27/2012 0.650% 12/01/2015

0.39 0.42 

Account 51260100 Page 10



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Fair Market Value & Analytics

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Value On Cost Amort Cost to WorstCUSIP Broker Date PriceDated Date/Coupon/Maturity Par at Mkt

Market Unreal G/L Unreal G/L DurationNext Call MarketSecurity Type/Description YTMEffective

Duration

Municipal Bond / Note

 0.87  221.25  221.25  75,221.25  100.30 BARCLAYS 75,000.00 91412GSX4UNIV OF CAL TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 10/02/2013 0.907% 05/15/2016

0.57 0.87 

 0.87  61.00  61.00  100,061.00  100.06 JPMCHASE 100,000.00 91412GPX7UNIV OF CAL TXBL REV BONDS

DTD 03/14/2013 0.659% 05/15/2016

0.59 0.87 

 579.25  0.47  0.59  579.25  450,579.25  450,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total  0.59

Federal Agency Collateralized Mortgage Obligation

 1.11  2,002.20  777.16  595,747.15  100.50 MORGANST 592,770.26 3136A8G38FNMA SERIES 2012-M13 ASQ2

DTD 09/01/2012 1.246% 08/01/2017

0.72 1.87 

 1.44  489.41 (431.02) 171,268.37  100.75 GOLDMAN 170,000.00 3136ANJY4FNMA SERIES 2015-M7 ASQ2

DTD 04/01/2015 1.550% 04/01/2018

0.96 2.57 

 346.14  0.77  1.18  2,491.61  767,015.52  762,770.26 Security Type Sub-Total  2.03

Federal Agency Bond / Note

 1.23  970.03 (1,435.00) 282,700.60  100.96 BARCLAYS 280,000.00 3135G0CM3FNMA NOTES

DTD 08/19/2011 1.250% 09/28/2016

0.47 1.23 

 1.23  1,396.90 (2,224.85) 419,002.68  100.96 BNP PARI 415,000.00 3135G0CM3FNMA NOTES

DTD 08/19/2011 1.250% 09/28/2016

0.47 1.23 

 1.24  1,506.64  2,424.83  975,231.08  100.02 MORGANST 975,000.00 3130A2T97FHLB NOTES

DTD 08/07/2014 0.500% 09/28/2016

0.48 1.24 

 1.90 (896.23)(859.81) 708,550.89  99.80 CITIGRP 710,000.00 3130A5EP0FHLB GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 05/15/2015 0.625% 05/30/2017

0.73 1.90 

 2.05  3,551.17  3,566.63  758,516.04  100.47 BARCLAYS 755,000.00 3137EADJ5FREDDIE MAC GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 06/25/2012 1.000% 07/28/2017

0.77 2.05 

 1,471.80  0.61  1.58  6,528.51  3,144,001.29  3,135,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total  1.58

Corporate Note

 0.65  195.54  273.32  285,173.57  100.06 JPMCHASE 285,000.00 713448CE6PEPSICO INC GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 02/28/2013 0.700% 02/26/2016

0.61 0.65 

 0.65  2,517.42  3,272.00  802,304.00  100.29 JPMCHASE 800,000.00 46623EJU4JPMORGAN CHASE & CO GLOBAL NOTES

DTD 02/26/2013 1.125% 02/26/2016

0.68 0.65 

Account 51260100 Page 11



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Fair Market Value & Analytics

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Value On Cost Amort Cost to WorstCUSIP Broker Date PriceDated Date/Coupon/Maturity Par at Mkt

Market Unreal G/L Unreal G/L DurationNext Call MarketSecurity Type/Description YTMEffective

Duration

Corporate Note

 0.71  966.93  1,243.55  550,853.05  100.16 RBC CAP 550,000.00 377372AG2GLAXOSMITHKLINE CAP INC GLOBAL 

NOTES

DTD 03/18/2013 0.700% 03/18/2016

0.48 0.71 

 0.88  297.59  408.87  385,251.02  100.07 CITIGRP 385,000.00 89236TAL9TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP

DTD 05/17/2013 0.800% 05/17/2016

0.73 0.88 

 1.04  2,497.29  2,832.91  547,309.71  100.42 WELLSFAR 545,000.00 94974BFL9WELLS FARGO & COMPANY

DTD 07/29/2013 1.250% 07/20/2016

0.85 1.04 

 1.11  1,126.52  1,288.21  491,028.51  100.21 WELLSFAR 490,000.00 084664BX8BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY FIN GLOBAL 

NOTES

DTD 08/15/2013 0.950% 08/15/2016

0.76 1.11 

 1.26  1,369.58  1,996.79  315,900.59  100.29 BARCLAYS 315,000.00 02665WAB7AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE GLOBAL 

NOTES

DTD 10/10/2013 1.125% 10/07/2016

0.90 1.26 

 1.62  373.83  716.18  674,946.68  99.99 CITIGRP 675,000.00 713448CL0PEPSICO CORP NOTES

DTD 02/28/2014 0.950% 02/22/2017

0.95 1.62 

 1.82  2,988.06  3,169.80  902,692.80  100.30 DEUTSCHE 900,000.00 037833AM2APPLE INC CORP NOTE

DTD 05/06/2014 1.050% 05/05/2017

0.89 1.82 

 1.92  547.61  638.96  560,375.76  100.07 HSBC 560,000.00 24422ESN0JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP NOTES

DTD 06/12/2014 1.125% 06/12/2017

1.09 1.92 

 1.95  158.98  312.30  299,856.30  99.95 HSBC 300,000.00 40434CAA3HSBC USA INC

DTD 06/23/2014 1.300% 06/23/2017

1.32 1.95 

 2.09  759.90  816.07  395,618.57  100.16 CITIGRP 395,000.00 14912L6D8CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SE

DTD 08/20/2014 1.250% 08/18/2017

1.18 2.09 

 2.17  851.75  919.60  200,651.60  100.33 DEUTSCHE 200,000.00 0258M0DR7AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT CORP NOTES

DTD 09/23/2014 1.550% 09/22/2017

1.40 2.17 

 2.54 (3,332.93)(2,970.00) 894,285.00  99.37 CITIGRP 900,000.00 459200HZ7IBM CORP NOTES

DTD 02/06/2015 1.125% 02/06/2018

1.37 2.54 

 2.47 (3,343.01)(6,319.30) 356,292.95  109.63 SUSQUEHA 325,000.00 58013MEE0MCDONALDS CORP NOTES

DTD 02/29/2008 5.350% 03/01/2018

1.65 2.47 

 2.62 (609.00)(609.00) 749,391.00  99.92 JPMCHASE 750,000.00 30231GAL6EXXON MOBIL CORP NOTES

DTD 03/06/2015 1.305% 03/06/2018

1.34 2.62 

 2.63  438.37  482.40  335,033.50  100.01 MORGANST 335,000.00 02665WAT8AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORP NOTES

DTD 03/13/2015 1.500% 03/13/2018

1.50 2.63 

Account 51260100 Page 12



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Fair Market Value & Analytics

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Value On Cost Amort Cost to WorstCUSIP Broker Date PriceDated Date/Coupon/Maturity Par at Mkt

Market Unreal G/L Unreal G/L DurationNext Call MarketSecurity Type/Description YTMEffective

Duration

Corporate Note

 2.80 (76.45)(75.87) 124,909.13  99.93 MERRILL 125,000.00 20826FAL0CONOCOPHILLIPS COMPANY CORP NOTE

DTD 05/18/2015 1.500% 05/15/2018

1.53 2.80 

 2.81 (364.28)(362.50) 724,572.25  99.94 GOLDMAN 725,000.00 06406HDB2BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP

DTD 05/29/2015 1.600% 05/22/2018

1.62 2.81 

 2.88  2,325.54  2,326.88  627,220.63  100.36 GOLDMAN 625,000.00 17275RAU6CISCO SYSTEMS INC CORP NOTE

DTD 06/17/2015 1.650% 06/15/2018

1.53 2.88 

 10,361.17  1.10  1.84  9,689.24  10,223,666.62  10,185,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total  1.84

Certificate of Deposit

 0.79  438.63  438.63  725,438.63  100.06 GOLDMAN 725,000.00 96121TWF1WESTPAC BANKING CORP NY LT FLOAT CD

DTD 04/17/2014 0.455% 04/15/2016

0.38 0.25 

 0.95  92.97  323.35  724,885.45  99.98 GOLDMAN 725,000.00 06417HMU7BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA HOUS CD FLOAT

DTD 06/13/2014 0.462% 06/10/2016

0.48 0.25 

 1.13  343.75  343.75  550,343.75  100.06 HSBC 550,000.00 40428AC54HSBC BANK USA NA CD

DTD 02/13/2015 0.880% 08/15/2016

0.43 1.13 

 1.76 (1,196.25)(1,196.25) 723,803.75  99.84 GOLDMAN 725,000.00 13606JYY9CANADIAN IMPERIAL BANK NY YCD

DTD 04/10/2015 1.010% 04/06/2017

1.10 1.76 

 1.80 (2,646.00)(2,646.00) 897,354.00  99.71 GOLDMAN 900,000.00 21684BXH2RABOBANK NEDERLAND NV CERT DEPOS

DTD 04/27/2015 1.070% 04/21/2017

1.22 1.80 

 1.90 (2,084.37)(2,084.37) 722,915.63  99.71 MERRILL 725,000.00 65558LFA5NORDEA BANK FINLAND NY CD

DTD 05/29/2015 1.150% 05/26/2017

1.25 1.90 

 1.94 (3.62)(3.62) 724,996.38  100.00 TD SEC U 725,000.00 89113ESN7TORONTO DOMINION BANK NY YCD

DTD 06/19/2015 1.240% 06/16/2017

1.25 1.94 

 2.19  450.65  762.70  724,595.45  99.94 08/11/17US BANK 725,000.00 90333VPF1US BANK NA CINCINNATI (CALLABLE) CD

DTD 09/11/2014 1.375% 09/11/2017

1.37 2.19 

(4,061.81)  0.96  1.58 (4,604.24) 5,794,333.04  5,800,000.00 Security Type Sub-Total  1.42

 36,007,770.26  36,084,867.70  2,471.84  46,599.10  1.79  0.82 Managed Account Sub-Total  1.79

Account 51260100 Page 13



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Fair Market Value & Analytics

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Total Investments $36,158,141.73 

$73,274.03 

$36,084,867.70 

Accrued Interest

Securities Sub-Total $36,007,770.26 $2,471.84 $46,599.10  1.79  0.82% 1.79 

Account 51260100 Page 14



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Security Transactions & Interest

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Transaction Type

Trade CUSIPSecurity DescriptionSettle Par Proceeds

Principal Accrued

Interest Total Cost

Realized G/L Realized G/L Sale

Amort Cost Method

BUY

06/17/15 CISCO SYSTEMS INC CORP NOTE

DTD 06/17/2015 1.650% 06/15/2018

17275RAU6 (624,893.75)  0.00 (624,893.75) 625,000.00 06/10/15

06/19/15 TORONTO DOMINION BANK NY YCD

DTD 06/19/2015 1.240% 06/16/2017

89113ESN7 (725,000.00)  0.00 (725,000.00) 725,000.00 06/16/15

06/23/15 FNMA SERIES 2012-M13 ASQ2

DTD 09/01/2012 1.246% 08/01/2017

3136A8G38 (594,969.99) (451.36) (595,421.35) 592,770.26 06/18/15

(451.36) (1,945,315.10)(1,944,863.74) 1,942,770.26 Transaction Type Sub-Total

INTEREST

06/01/15 CA ST DEPT OF WATER TXBL REV 

BONDS

DTD 09/27/2012 0.650% 12/01/2015

13066KX87  0.00  893.75  893.75  275,000.00 06/01/15

06/25/15 FNMA SERIES 2015-M7 ASQ2

DTD 04/01/2015 1.550% 04/01/2018

3136ANJY4  0.00  219.58  219.58  170,000.00 06/01/15

06/10/15 BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA HOUS CD 

FLOAT

DTD 06/13/2014 0.462% 06/10/2016

06417HMU7  0.00  823.75  823.75  725,000.00 06/10/15

06/12/15 JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP NOTES

DTD 06/12/2014 1.125% 06/12/2017

24422ESN0  0.00  3,150.00  3,150.00  560,000.00 06/12/15

06/23/15 HSBC USA INC

DTD 06/23/2014 1.300% 06/23/2017

40434CAA3  0.00  1,950.00  1,950.00  300,000.00 06/23/15

06/30/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2009 3.250% 06/30/2016

912828KZ2  0.00  6,093.75  6,093.75  375,000.00 06/30/15

06/30/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/02/2012 0.750% 06/30/2017

912828TB6  0.00  2,531.25  2,531.25  675,000.00 06/30/15

06/30/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 01/03/2012 0.875% 12/31/2016

912828RX0  0.00  5,031.25  5,031.25  1,150,000.00 06/30/15

 20,693.33  20,693.33  0.00  4,230,000.00 Transaction Type Sub-Total

SELL

06/17/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 12/31/2012 0.750% 12/31/2017

912828UE8  198,906.25  696.13  199,602.38  484.38  210.54 SPEC LOT 200,000.00 06/10/15

Account 51260100 Page 15



For the Month Ending June 30, 2015Managed Account Security Transactions & Interest

CITY OF LAKEWOOD - 51260100

Transaction Type

Trade CUSIPSecurity DescriptionSettle Par Proceeds

Principal Accrued

Interest Total Cost

Realized G/L Realized G/L Sale

Amort Cost Method

SELL

06/17/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 09/30/2010 1.875% 09/30/2017

912828PA2  419,241.02  1,638.32  420,879.34 (1,041.01)  1,553.38 SPEC LOT 410,000.00 06/10/15

06/19/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/02/2012 0.750% 06/30/2017

912828TB6  725,226.56  2,553.52  727,780.08  962.89  789.59 SPEC LOT 725,000.00 06/16/15

06/23/15 US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2009 3.250% 06/30/2016

912828KZ2  586,654.69  8,904.28  595,558.97 (30,771.10)  888.40 SPEC LOT 570,000.00 06/23/15

 13,792.25  3,441.91 (30,364.84) 1,943,820.77  1,930,028.52  1,905,000.00 Transaction Type Sub-Total

(14,835.22)  34,034.22  19,199.00 (30,364.84)  3,441.91 Managed Account Sub-Total

Total Security Transactions ($30,364.84)$19,199.00 $34,034.22 ($14,835.22) $3,441.91 

Account 51260100 Page 16







RESOLUTION NO. 2015-36 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD ESTABLISHING DISABLED PERSON 
DESIGNATED PARKING ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF 
PEPPERWOOD AVENUE WITHIN THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:  
 
 SECTION 1.  This Resolution is enacted pursuant to Section 21458 and 22507 of the 
Vehicle Code of the State of California, and Section 3250.2 of the Lakewood Municipal Code. 
 
 SECTION 2.  Disabled person designated parking is hereby established on the south side 
of Pepperwood Avenue, beginning sixty (60) feet east of the eastern curb line of Lakewood 
Boulevard, East Service Road, continuing east for a distance of twenty (20) feet within the City 
of Lakewood.  No vehicle shall stop, stand or park in said parking restriction unless displaying a 
special identification license plate or placard issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles 
pursuant to Section 22511.55 of the California Vehicle Code. 
 
 SECTION 3.  This resolution shall be effective as long as said restriction is painted and 
posted in accordance with the requirements of Vehicle Code Section 22511.7 of the California 
Vehicle Code.  In addition, this resolution shall be in effect only as long as Christine Hogan, a 
physically disabled person, occupies the house at 5646 Lakewood Boulevard. 
 
 SECTION 4.  This resolution has been adopted pursuant to a Community Safety 
Commission recommendation. 
 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 28th day of July, 2015. 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-37 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD ESTABLISHING DISABLED PERSON 
DESIGNATED PARKING ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
HUNGERFORD STREET WITHIN THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:  
 
 SECTION 1.  This Resolution is enacted pursuant to Section 21458 and 22507 of the 
Vehicle Code of the State of California, and Section 3250.2 of the Lakewood Municipal Code. 
 
 SECTION 2.  Disabled person designated parking is hereby established on the north side 
of Hungerford Street, beginning eighty (80) feet east of the eastern curb line of Pepperwood 
Avenue, continuing east for a distance of (20) feet within the City of Lakewood.  No vehicle 
shall stop, stand or park in said parking restriction unless displaying a special identification 
license plate or placard issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles pursuant to Section 
22511.55 of the California Vehicle Code. 
 
 SECTION 3.  This resolution shall be effective as long as said restriction is painted and 
posted in accordance with the requirements of Vehicle Code Section 22511.7 of the California 
Vehicle Code.  In addition, this resolution shall be in effect only as long as Chastity Carvel, a 
physically disabled person, occupies the house at 4327 Hungerford Street. 
 
 SECTION 4.  This resolution has been adopted pursuant to a Community Safety 
Commission recommendation. 
 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 28th day of July, 2015. 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
City Clerk 













1 
 

 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

 
STEVEN N. SKOLNIK, Of Counsel 

14570 Gallaudet Place, Pacific Palisades, CA 90272 
(310) 459-3418 * FAX (310) 606-2775 * EMAIL sskolniklaw@gmail.com 

 
 

 
 

July 28, 2015 
 
Marquette Bank 
10000 W. 151st St.  
Orland Park, IL 60462 
 

RE: Assignment and Assumption Agreement regarding Municipal Lease-
Purchase  Agreement No. 4468  
 

Dear Marquette Bank: 
 
I am legal counsel for the City of Lakewood with respect to the Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement by and between the City of El Monte, the City of Lakewood, and 
Marquette Bank (the “Agreement”), which concerns Municipal Lease-Purchase 
Agreement No. 4468 (the “Lease”).  I have reviewed the Agreement, Lease, Quit Claim 
Bill of Sale, Resolution, Agreement to Provide Insurance, Acceptance Certificate, and 
other related documents.  I am of the opinion that: 
 

1. The City of Lakewood is a political subdivision or agency of the State of 
California with the requisite power and authority to incur obligations, the 
interest on which is exempt from taxation by virtue of Section 103(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986; 
 

2. The execution, delivery, and performance by the City of Lakewood of the 
Agreement, Lease, Quit Claim Bill of Sale, Agreement to Provide Insurance, 
and Acceptance Certificate have been duly authorized by all necessary action on 
the part of the City of Lakewood, in accordance with all open meeting laws, 
public bidding laws, and all other applicable state and federal laws; 
 



2 
 

3. The Agreement and Lease constitute legal, valid, and binding obligations of the 
City of Lakewood to Marquette Bank, enforceable in accordance with their 
terms, and are not void or voidable for any reason; 
 

4. There is no proceeding pending or threatened in any court or before any 
governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal that, if adversely 
determined, would adversely affect the transaction contemplated by the 
Agreement and Lease, or the interest of Marquette Bank in the Equipment, as 
that term is defined in the Agreement;   
 

5. Provided herewith is a Resolution regarding the Agreement, Lease, Quit Claim 
Bill of Sale, Agreement to Provide Insurance, and Acceptance Certificate, 
prepared by my firm, which has been duly executed and authorized by all 
necessary action on the part of the City of Lakewood.   

 
6. Contemporaneously with the execution of the Agreement, the City of Lakewood 

shall file a Form 8038-G with the Internal Revenue Service regarding its 
obligation under the Lease, and shall provide a copy of the filed Form 8038-G 
to Marquette Bank upon filing. 
 

7. Marquette Bank is relying upon the above opinions to enter into the Agreement.   

 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Steven N. Skolnik 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-38 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD AUTHORIZING THE ASSIGNMENT OF 
MARQUETTE BANK LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
#4468 FOR THE PURCHASE OF A ROBINSON R44 RAVEN II 
POLICE HELICOPTER 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lakewood (City) operates an airborne law enforcement program 
called Sky Knight; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to replace one of its helicopters in the Sky Knight Program; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of El Monte wishes to sell its Robinson R44 Raven II Police 
Helicopter  (Helicopter) via assignment of its Lease-Purchase Agreement with Marquette Bank  
to the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to assume and accept assignment of all of the City of El 
Monte’s right, title and interest in the Helicopter, and obligations under the Lease-Purchase 
Agreement #4468 with Marquette Bank; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Attorney for the City has reviewed the Agreement, Lease, Quit 
Claim Bill of Sale, Resolution, Agreement to Provide Insurance, Acceptance Certificate, and 
other related documents. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Manager is authorized and directed to execute on behalf of the 
City Council the Assignment and Assumption Agreement of the Helicopter attached as Exhibit 
A. 
 
 SECTION 2. The City Manager is authorized to acknowledge the Quit Claim Bill of 
Sale of the Helicopter once executed by the City of El Monte attached as Exhibit B. 
 
 SECTION 3. The City Manager is authorized to execute the Acceptance Certificate of 
the Helicopter, attached as Exhibit C, at such time when all the provisions in the Certificate are 
met. 
 
 SECTION 4. The City Manager is directed to attain insurance and authorized to execute 
the Agreement to Provide Insurance for the Helicopter, Attached as Exhibit D. 



Resolution No. 2015-38 
Page Two 
 

 SECTION 5. City Manager is authorized to execute any additional documents that may 
be necessary in order to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution subject to approval as to 
form by the City Attorney. 
 
 SECTION 6. The City Clerk is directed to certify the adoption of this resolution. 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 28TH DAY OF JULY, 2015. 
 
 
 
              
       Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
City Clerk 



Page 1 of 5 
 

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT 

 
This Assignment and Assumption Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made this ______ day of 
July, 2015, by and between the City of El Monte, 11333 Valley Blvd., El Monte, CA 91731; the 
City of Lakewood, 5050 Clark Ave., Lakewood, CA 90712; and Marquette Bank, 10000 W. 
151st St., Orland Park, IL 60462 (collectively, the “Parties”). 
 

RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, on February 6, 2007, Governmental Capital Corporation (“Governmental Capital”), 
as lessor, and the City of El Monte, as lessee, entered into Municipal Lease-Purchase Agreement 
No. 4468 (the “Lease”), for the lease of a Robinson R44 Raven II Police Helicopter, FAA 
Registration No. N968RM (formerly N3034P), Aircraft Serial No. 11781 (the “Helicopter”), 
along with all present and future attachments, accessions, replacements, and proceeds thereof 
including amounts payable under any insurance policy, and communications equipment (the 
“Personal Property”)(the Helicopter and Personal Property are referred to collectively as the 
“Equipment”).  The Lease is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and made an integral part hereof.     
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Lease and subject to changes in the interest rate, the City of El 
Monte agreed to make fifteen (15) annual payments of $49,871.80, for a total of $748,077. 
 
WHEREAS, to secure the City of El Monte’s obligations under the Lease, the City of El Monte 
granted to Governmental Capital, its successors and/or assigns, a first priority security interest in 
the Equipment.    
 
WHEREAS, on April 16, 2007, Governmental Capital, as assignor, and Marquette Bank, as 
assignee, entered into a Lease Assignment Agreement (the “Assignment”), under which 
Governmental Capital assigned all of its right, title, and interest in and to the Lease to Marquette 
Bank, including Governmental Capital’s first priority security interest in the Equipment.  The 
Assignment is attached hereto as Exhibit 2 and made an integral part hereof.        
 
WHEREAS, on April 19, 2007, UCC Financing Statements were filed with the California 
Secretary of State and Texas Secretary of State as Document Nos. 07-7110984774 and 07-
0013152039, respectively, thereby perfecting Marquette Bank’s first priority security interest in 
the Personal Property and the Lease.   
 
WHEREAS, on August 10, 2007, the Lease was recorded with the Federal Aviation 
Administration as Conveyance No. S 132127, thereby perfecting Governmental Capital’s first 
priority security interest in the Helicopter.    
 
WHEREAS, also on August 10, 2007, the Assignment was recorded with the Federal Aviation 
Administration as Conveyance No. S 132128, thereby perfecting Marquette Bank’s first priority 
security interest in the Helicopter. 
 
WHEREAS, as of July 23, 2015, seven (7) annual payments of $49,871.80 each, subject to 
adjustment as provided in the Lease, remain due and payable under the Lease, with the first 



Page 2 of 5 
 

payment due August 1, 2015 and the final payment due August 1, 2021.   
 
WHEREAS, the City of El Monte wishes to sell, assign, and/or transfer all of its right, title, and 
interest in, and obligations under, the Lease and the Equipment to City of Lakewood, subject to 
Marquette Bank’s first priority security interest in the Equipment.    
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lakewood wishes to purchase, assume, and accept assignment of all of 
the City of El Monte’s right, title, and interest in, and obligations under, the Lease and the 
Equipment, subject to Marquette Bank’s first priority security interest in the Equipment.    
 
WHEREAS, Marquette Bank consents to such sale, assignment, assumption, and transfer, 
subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and other good and valuable 
consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties contract as follows. 
  

AGREEMENT 

 
1. Recitals.  The above Recitals are incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2. Assignment.  The City of El Monte hereby sells, assigns, and/or transfers to the 

City of Lakewood all of its right, title, and interest in and to the Lease and Equipment, pursuant 
to this Agreement and the Quit Claim Bill of Sale executed contemporaneously herewith.   

 
3. Promise to Pay.  The City of Lakewood hereby: 

a. promises to pay to Marquette Bank all monies due under Lease, and all monies to 
become due under the Lease, in the manner set forth therein; 

b. promises to reimburse Marquette Bank for all costs associated with the 
preparation of this Agreement and the related documents, including Marquette Bank’s attorneys’ 
fees;  

c. assumes and covenants to perform all obligations of the City of El Monte under 
the Lease; 

d. agrees that it shall stand in the place and stead of the City of El Monte and shall 
be subject to all of the terms and provisions contained in the Lease, as though it were the original 
lessee named therein; and  

e. agrees that Marquette Bank shall be entitled to collect from the City of Lakewood, 
in connection with any effort by Marquette Bank to enforce its rights and remedies under the 
Lease, all out of pocket costs and expenses of Marquette Bank, including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and court costs.  The above remedies are cumulative and may be enforced separately or 
concurrently and are in addition to any other rights or remedies available to Marquette Bank at 
law or in equity or as set forth in the Lease.    

 
4. Representations/Warranties/Guarantee of Lease.  In consideration for 

Marquette Bank’s consent to the foregoing sale, assignment, transfer, and assumption, by the 
City of El Monte to the City of Lakewood, the City of El Monte absolutely, irrevocably, and 
unconditionally represents, warrants, and guarantees to Marquette Bank and its successors and 



Page 3 of 5 
 

assigns that: (a) it may lawfully enter into this Agreement, and has in fact lawfully entered into 
this Agreement; (b) the Equipment is in good operating condition, able to be used for its intended 
purposes; (c) this Agreement has been duly authorized; (d) it is in good standing with all other 
government entities and all of its creditors; and (e) it has provided herewith a duly authorized 
and executed resolution.   

 
In consideration for Marquette Bank’s consent to the foregoing sale, assignment, transfer, and 
assumption, by the City of El Monte to the City of Lakewood, the City of Lakewood absolutely, 
irrevocably, and unconditionally represents, warrants, and guarantees to Marquette Bank and its 
successors and assigns that: (a) it may lawfully enter into this Agreement, and has in fact 
lawfully entered into this Agreement; (b) the Equipment is in good operating condition, able to 
be used for its intended purposes; (c) this Agreement has been duly authorized; (d) it is in good 
standing with all other government entities and all of its creditors; (e) it has provided herewith a 
duly authorized and executed resolution; and (f) contemporaneously with the execution of this 
Agreement, it shall file a Form 8038-G with the Internal Revenue Service regarding its 
obligation under the Lease, and shall provide a copy of the filed Form 8038-G to Marquette 
Bank upon filing.    
 
Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a release by Marquette Bank of the City of El 
Monte of its obligations and covenants under the Lease.   

 
5. Release and Estoppel.  In consideration for Marquette Bank’s execution of this 

Agreement, the City of El Monte and the City of Lakewood, and their respective predecessors, 
successors in interest, assigns, subsidiaries, affiliates, employees, agents, officers, directors and 
representatives, hereby fully release and discharge Marquette Bank and its predecessors, 
successors in interest, assigns, subsidiaries, affiliates, employees, agents, officers, directors and 
representatives, from any and all claims, whether past or present, known or unknown, asserted or 
unasserted, relating in any way to the Lease, Equipment, and/or this Agreement. 

 
6. Execution of Additional Documents.  The Parties agree to execute such 

additional documents as may be required to implement this Agreement, including an Aircraft 
Registration Application for the Federal Aviation Administration.   

 
7. Review by Counsel.  The Parties acknowledge that they are entitled to and have 

had the opportunity to have the terms of this Agreement reviewed by counsel of their choice.  
The Parties and their counsel have reviewed and revised or had an opportunity to review and 
revise this Agreement.  Accordingly, the normal rule of construction to the effect that any 
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the 
interpretation of this Agreement.  City of El Monte and City of Lakewood hereby represent that 
they have relied upon or have had the opportunity to obtain the legal advice of an attorney of 
their choice.  City of El Monte and City of Lakewood further represent that they have read this 
Agreement in full and fully understand and voluntarily accept the terms of this Agreement. 

 
8. No Representations.  The Parties understand and agree that this Agreement and 

its terms are contractual and not mere recitals; that no promise, inducement, or agreement not 



Page 4 of 5 
 

expressed in this Agreement has been made to them; and further understand and agree that this 
Agreement shall be final and binding upon them. 

 
9. Agreement May Be Executed in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be 

executed in one or more counterparts, all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  Once this Agreement is fully-executed, the City of El Monte and the City of 
Lakewood shall provide Marquette Bank with their original, ink signatures on all documents 
associated with the transaction contemplated herein, including this Agreement.  

 
10. Severability.  If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this Agreement is 

illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, for any reason whatsoever, such illegality, invalidity, or 
unenforceability shall not affect the legality, validity, or enforceability of the remaining parts of 
this Agreement, which shall have full force and effect as if the illegal, invalid, or unenforceable 
part had not been included. 

 
11. Choice of Law; Jury Waiver.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the 

Lease, the Lease and this Agreement shall be governed and enforced by the laws of the State of 
California.  At the option of Marquette Bank, jurisdiction and venue for any dispute arising 
under or in relation to this Agreement or the Lease will lie only in Cook County, Illinois or the 
United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois.  The Parties voluntarily and 

knowingly waive their right to a jury trial with respect to any dispute arising out of or 

related to this Agreement or the Lease.     
 
12. Parties Are Authorized to Sign.  Any signatory to this Agreement hereby 

represents and warrants that he/she has the authority to execute this Agreement and to bind the 
respective Parties. 
 
This Agreement is effective for all purposes on the day and year set forth above. 
 
CITY OF EL MONTE 
 
By: _________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________ 
 
 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
 
By: _________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 5 
 

MARQUETTE BANK 
 
By: _________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________ 



























 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-39 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
URGING THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA TO PROVIDE NEW 
SUSTAINABLE FUNDING FOR STATE AND LOCAL TRANSPORTATION 
INFRASTRUCTURE 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
WHEREAS, Governor Edmund G. Brown, Jr. has called an extraordinary session to address the 
immense underfunding of California’s transportation infrastructure; and  
 
WHEREAS, cities and counties own and operate more than 81 percent of streets and roads in 
California, and from the moment we open our front door to drive to work, bike to school, or walk 
to the bus station, people are dependent upon a safe, reliable local transportation network; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lakewood has participated in efforts with the California State 
Association of Counties, League of California Cities, and California’s Regional Transportation 
Planning Agencies to study unmet funding needs for local roads and bridges, including sidewalks 
and other essential components; and 
 
WHEREAS, the resulting 2014 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment, 
which provides critical analysis and information on the local transportation network’s condition 
and funding needs, indicates that the condition of the local transportation network is deteriorating 
as predicted in the initial 2008 study; and 
 
WHEREAS, the results show that California’s local streets and roads are on a path of significant 
decline. On a scale of zero (failed) to 100 (excellent), the statewide average pavement condition 
index (PCI) is 66, placing it in the “at risk” category where pavements will begin to deteriorate 
much more rapidly and require rehabilitation or rebuilding rather than more cost-effective 
preventative maintenance if funding is not increased; and 
 
WHEREAS, if funding remains at the current levels, in 10 years, 25 percent of local streets and 
roads in California will be in “failed” condition; and 
 
WHEREAS, cities and counties need an additional $1.7 billion just to maintain a status quo 
pavement condition of 66, and much more revenue to operate the system with Best Management 
Practices, which would reduce the total amount of funding needed for maintenance in the future; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, models show that an additional $3 billion annual investment in the local streets and 
roads system is expected to improve pavement conditions statewide from an average “at risk” 
condition to an average “good” condition; and 



Resolution No. 2015-39 
Page 2 

 
WHEREAS, if additional funding isn’t secured now, it will cost taxpayers twice as much to fix 
the local system in the future, as failure to act this year will increase unmet funding needs for 
local transportation facilities by $11 billion in five years and $21 billion in ten years; and   
 
WHEREAS, modernizing the local street and road system provides well-paying construction 
jobs and boosts local economies; and  
 
WHEREAS, the local street and road system is also critical for farm to market needs, 
interconnectivity, multimodal needs, and commerce; and 
 
WHEREAS, police, fire, and emergency medical services all need safe reliable roads to react 
quickly to emergency calls and a few minutes of delay can be a matter of life and death; and  
 
WHEREAS, maintaining and preserving the local street and road system in good condition will 
reduce drive times and traffic congestion, improve bicycle safety, and make the pedestrian 
experience safer and more appealing, which leads to reduce vehicle emissions helping the State 
achieve its air quality and greenhouse gas emissions reductions goals; and  
 
WHEREAS, restoring roads before they fail also reduces construction time which results in less 
air pollution from heavy equipment and less water pollution from site run-off; and  
 
WHEREAS, in addition to the local system, the state highway system needs an additional $5.7 
billion annually to address the state’s deferred maintenance; and  
 
WHEREAS, in order to bring the local system back into a cost-effective condition, at least $7.3 
billion annually in new money going directly to cities and counties; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD strongly urges the Governor and Legislature to identity a sufficient and stable 
funding source for local street and road and state highway maintenance and rehabilitation to 
ensure the safe and efficient mobility of the traveling public and the economic vitality of 
California.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the CITY OF LAKEWOOD strongly urges the Governor and 
Legislature to adopt the following priorities for funding California’s streets and roads.   
 

1. Make a significant investment in transportation infrastructure.  Any 
package should seek to raise at least $6 billion annually and should remain in 
place for at least 10 years or until an alternative method of funding our 
transportation system is agreed upon. 

 



Resolution No. 2015-39 
Page 3 

2. Focus on maintaining and rehabilitating the current system. Repairing 
California’s streets and highways involves much more than fixing potholes. It 
requires major road pavement overlays, fixing unsafe bridges, providing safe 
access for bicyclists and pedestrians, replacing storm water culverts, as well as 
operational improvements that necessitate the construction of auxiliary lanes 
to relieve traffic congestion choke points and fixing design deficiencies that 
have created unsafe merging and other traffic hazards. This also includes 
improvements to traffic signals, street light systems, and public right of ways.   
Efforts to supply funding for transit in addition to funding for roads should 
also focus on fixing the system first.  

 
3. Equal split between state and local projects. We support sharing revenue 

for roadway maintenance equally (50/50) between the state and cities and 
counties, given the equally-pressing funding needs of both systems, as well as 
the longstanding historical precedent for collecting transportation user fees 
through a centralized system and sharing the revenues across the entire 
network through direct subventions. Ensuring that funding to local 
governments is provided directly, without intermediaries, will accelerate 
project delivery and ensure maximum accountability.  

 
4. Raise revenues across a broad range of options. Research by the California 

Alliance for Jobs and Transportation California shows that voters strongly 
support increased funding for transportation improvements.  They are much 
more open to a package that spreads potential tax or fee increases across a 
broad range of options, including fuel taxes, license fees, and registration fees, 
rather than just one source. Additionally, any package should move California 
toward an all-users pay structure, in which everyone who benefits from the 
system contributes to maintaining it – from traditional gasoline-fueled 
vehicles, to new hybrids or electric vehicles, to commercial vehicles.  

 
5. Invest a portion of diesel tax and/or cap & trade revenue to high-priority 

goods movement projects. While the focus of a transportation funding 
package should be on maintaining and rehabilitating the existing system, 
California has a critical need to upgrade the goods movement infrastructure 
that is essential to our economic well-being. Establishing a framework to 
make appropriate investments in major goods movement arteries can lay the 
groundwork for greater investments in the future that will also improve air 
quality and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 

 
6. Strong accountability requirements to protect the taxpayers’ investment. 

Voters and taxpayers must be assured that all transportation revenues are 
spent responsibly. They should be spent on transportation improvements and 
never taken by the State to make up for budget deficits and used for 
transportation purposes.  Local governments are accustomed to employing 



Resolution No. 2015-39 
Page 4 

transparent processes for selecting road maintenance projects aided by 
pavement management systems, as well as reporting on the expenditure of 
transportation funds through the State Controller’s Local Streets and Roads 
Annual Report.  

 
7. Provide Consistent Annual Funding Levels. Under current statute, the 

annual gas tax adjustment by the Board of Equalization is creating extreme 
fluctuations in funding levels – a $900 million drop in this budget year alone.  
A transportation funding package should contain legislation that will create 
more consistent revenue projections and allow Caltrans and transportation 
agencies the certainty they need for longer term planning.   

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 28TH DAY OF JULY, 2015.  

 
 
 

       ______________________________ 
       Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 





 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-40 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
SUPPORTING THE WATER REPLENISHMENT DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN 
CALIFORNIA’S GROUNDWATER RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECT 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
WHEREAS, the Water Replenishment District of Southern California (WRD) manages and 
replenishes the Central and West Coast groundwater basins, which provide forty percent of the 
overall water needs for four million people in south Los Angeles County; and  

 
WHEREAS, WRD implemented its Water Independence Now (WIN) Program to completely 
eliminate the need for groundwater replenishment water imported from northern California 
and the Colorado River; and 

 
WHEREAS, this imported water is increasingly expensive and difficult to obtain for 
groundwater replenishment because of the state's severe drought; and 
 
WHEREAS, WRD's proposed Groundwater Reliability Improvement Project (GRIP) is the 
cornerstone of the WIN Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, WRD's WIN and GRIP efforts will provide a completely locally sustainable 
groundwater supply that will greatly improve water reliability and will drought-proof our 
region’s groundwater resources; and 

 
WHEREAS, GRIP's recycled water will meet the same stringent state and federal water 
quality standards as imported water; WRD's safe use of recycled wastewater is time-tested; 
and for decades WRD has safely used recycled wastewater for replenishment; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD that by adoption of this resolution on this 28TH day of JULY, 2015, the City of 
LAKEWOOD does hereby support the Water Replenishment District’s Groundwater 
Reliability Improvement Project.  
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 28TH DAY OF JULY, 2015.  
 
 
 

      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 





 







 RESOLUTION NO. 2015-41 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD DIRECTING THE PREPARATION OF A 
REPORT OF DELINQUENT FEES FOR GARBAGE, WASTE 
AND REFUSE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL WITHIN THE 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD, AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING 
THEREON FOR JULY 28, 2015 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lakewood, in accordance with the provisions 

of Chapter 3 of Article V of the Lakewood Municipal Code, commencing with Section 5300, did 
on and prior to May 31, 2015, provide to and remove from the parcels of land within the City of 
Lakewood, garbage, waste, and refuse for which a fee was charged pursuant to the terms and 
provisions of the Lakewood Municipal Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, any fees which remain unpaid for a period of sixty or more days after the 
date upon which they were billed may be collected thereafter by the City pursuant to 
Government Code Section 25831; and 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on a report of said delinquent fees should be set before the 
City Council for July 28, 2015; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LAKEWOOD THAT: 
 

SECTION 1.  The Director of Administrative Services of the City of Lakewood is hereby 
directed to cause to be prepared a Report of Delinquent Fees of $39.00 or more existing on May 
31, 2015, The City Council does hereby fix July 28, 2015, at 7:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter at 
the Centre at Sycamore Plaza, 5000 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, California, as the time, date and 
place for a hearing on said Report, and any objections or protests thereto. 
 

SECTION 2.  The City Clerk shall cause notice of this hearing in the form and fashion of 
that attached hereto to be mailed to the landowners listed on the Report not less than ten (10) 
days prior to the date of said hearing. 
 

SECTION 3.  At the hearing the City Council shall hear any objections or protests of 
landowners liable to be assessed for delinquent fees.  The City Council may make such revisions 
or corrections to the Report as it deems just, after which by resolution the report shall be 
confirmed. 
 

SECTION 4.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution. 
 



Resolution No. 2015-41 
Page 2 
 
 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 28TH DAY OF JULY, 2015. 
 
 
 

      
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
City Clerk 

































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 ORDINANCE NO. 2015-5 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD AMENDING THE LAKEWOOD MUNICIPAL 
CODE AND THE ZONING ORDINANCE CLARIFYING THAT 
PORTION OF THE LAKEWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE 
PERTAINING TO CARWASHES AND LIMITATIONS OF 
USES PERMITTED IN COMMERCIAL ZONES 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. Article IX Planning - Zoning of the Lakewood Municipal Code is hereby 
amended as provided in this Ordinance pursuant to Public Hearings before the Planning and 
Environment Commission and the City Council. 
 

SECTION 2. CEQA.  The City Council finds that an Initial Study has been prepared for 
the proposed project, pursuant to Section 15063 of the California Environmental Quality Act 
Guidelines, as amended.  A Negative Declaration has been prepared for the project, pursuant to 
Section 15070, et. seq., of the Guidelines.  The project was found to have no significant effect on 
the environment.  Therefore, said Negative Declaration is hereby approved. 
 

SECTION 3. PURPOSE.  This purpose of this ordinance is to clarify that portion of the 
Lakewood Municipal Code pertaining to carwashes and limitations of uses permitted in 
commercial zones. 
 

SECTION 4. Section 9341.  Limitations of Uses Permitted of Part 4 C-1 (Neighborhood 
Commercial) Zone Regulations of Chapter 3 Zoning of Article IX of the Lakewood Municipal 
Code is amended by modifying Subsection 9341.B to read as follows: 
 
9341. LIMITATIONS OF USES PERMITTED.  Every use permitted in a C-1 Zone shall be 
subject to the following conditions and limitations: 
 

B.  All uses shall be conducted wholly within a building except a plant nursery, gasoline, oil 
or petroleum product pumps, newsstand, outdoor advertising, commercial parking lots, 
vehicular parking and loading spaces, vacuums, vacuum stations, and other outdoor 
equipment and activities normally associated with a carwash as permitted in conjunction with 
such facilities, and other outdoor accessory uses, displays, and storage, which are normal and 
incidental to the primary permitted commercial use, and outdoor displays and storage where 
otherwise allowed or authorized by this Part.  No required vehicle storage space or landscaped 
area shall be devoted to outdoor displays or storage. 

 



Ordinance No. 2015-5 
Page 2 
 
 
 

SECTION 5. Section 9347. Uses Permitted of Part 4a C-3 (Intermediate Commercial) 
Zone Regulations of Chapter 3 Zoning of Article IX of the Lakewood Municipal Code is 
amended by modifying Subsection 9347.C to read as follows: 
 
9347. USES PERMITTED. 
 

C.  RESTRICTIONS ON CERTAIN USES.  Notwithstanding that the foregoing, the 
following uses are permitted provided that said use or the parking facilities thereof are located 
more than two hundred feet from the boundaries of any land zoned for residential use:  

1. Automobile wash racks, mechanical 
21. Bars, cocktail lounges, or any establishment offering alcoholic beverage for sale for 
consumption on the premises. 

 
SECTION 6. Section 9347. Uses Permitted of Part 4a C-3 (Intermediate Commercial) 

Zone Regulations of Chapter 3 Zoning of Article IX of the Lakewood Municipal Code is 
amended by modifying Subsection 9347.D to read as follows: 
 
9347. USES PERMITTED. 
 

D. USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  The following 
uses are permitted provided that in each instance a conditional use permit has been obtained 
and continues in full force and effect: 

 
11. Vehicle wash racks, carwashes, or any permanent facility offering hand and/or 
mechanical washing, which includes detailing, waxing, or cleaning of non-commercial 
vehicles, and whether self- or full-service.  Carwash facilities may include outdoor 
vacuums, vacuum stations, and other outdoor equipment and activities normally 
associated with a carwash.  Other activities and uses may co-locate with a carwash as 
deemed acceptable by the Planning and Environment Commission. 

 
SECTION 7.  SEVERABILITY.  The City Council hereby declares it would have passed 

this Ordinance sentence by sentence, paragraph by paragraph and section by section, and does 
hereby declare the provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if for any reason any section 
of this Ordinance should be held invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining parts of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 8.  CERTIFICATION.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this 
Ordinance.  The City Council hereby finds and determines there are no newspapers of general 
circulation both published and circulated within the City and, in compliance with Section 36933 
of the Government Code, directs the City Clerk to cause said Ordinance within fifteen (15) days 
after its passage to be posted in at least three (3) public places within the City as established by 
ordinance.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption. 
 



Ordinance No. 2015-5 
Page 3 
 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ____ day of ___________, 2015, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
  AYES  NAYS ABSENT 
Council Member DuBois       
Council Member Rogers       
Council Member Piazza       
Council Member Croft       
Mayor Wood       
 
 
 
             
       Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
City Clerk 
 





 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-42 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD APPOINTING ____________________________ TO 
THE COMMUNITY SAFETY COMMISSION REPLACING 
SCOTT BAUMAN 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. Resolution No. 2015-12 of the City Council pertaining to the appointment of 

members to the various commissions is amended as provided in this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 2.  Section 1 of said resolution pertaining to residents of the City of Lakewood 
appointed member of the Community Safety Commission for a term of two years, terminating with 
the second Council Meeting following the bi-annual municipal election is hereby amended by 
replacing Scott Bauman with ____________________, a resident of the City of Lakewood. 
 

SECTION 3. The appointment of ____________________________ herein contained shall 
be effective upon said member taking the Constitutional Oath of Office and filing the Statement of 
Economic Interest within the time and manner specified in the Conflict of Interest Code of the City 
of Lakewood. 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 28TH DAY OF JULY, 2015. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
City Clerk 

2.1 





 

















 













 

 












